
 

 

 

Simon Hobbs 
Director of Legal and 
Democratic Services 
County Hall 
Matlock 
Derbyshire 
DE4 3AG 
 
Extension 38357 
Direct Dial 01629 538357 
Ask for Danny 
Sunderland 
 

 
PUBLIC 

 
To:  Members of Cabinet Member meeting - Strategic Leadership, Culture and 
Tourism 
 
 
 

Thursday, 30 January 2020 
 
Dear Councillor, 
 
Please attend a meeting of the Cabinet Member meeting - Strategic 
Leadership, Culture and Tourism to be held at 10.00 am on Friday, 7 
February 2020 in Committee Room 3, County Hall, Matlock, DE4 3AG, 
the agenda for which is set out below. 
 
Yours faithfully, 

 
Simon Hobbs 
Director of Legal and Democratic Services  
 
A G E N D A 
 
PART I - NON-EXEMPT ITEMS  
 
1.   Apologies for Absence  

 
To receive apologies for absence (if any) 
 

2.   Declarations of Interest  
 
To receive declarations of interest (if any) 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

3.   Minutes (Pages 1 - 6) 
 
To confirm the non-exempt minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet Member 
– Strategic Leadership, Culture and Tourism held on 23 January 2020. 
 

4.   To consider the report of the Executive Director of Economy, Transport and 
Environment on:  
 

4 (a)   Festival of Derbyshire - Update and Resourcing Requirements (Pages 7 - 
12) 
 

4 (b)   Withdrawal of Award of Grants to External Recipients Vital Valley (Heritage 
Lottery Fund Great Place Scheme) and the Procurement of Commission 
(Pages 13 - 16) 
 

5.   Exclusion of the Public  
 
To move “That under Regulation 21 (1)(b) of the Local Authorities 
(Executive Arrangements) (Access to Information) (England)  Regulations 
2000, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in Paragraph(s)… of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the 
Local Government Act 1972” 
 

PART II - EXEMPT ITEMS  
 
6.   Declarations of Interest  

 
To receive declarations of interest (if any) 
 

7.   Minutes (Pages 17 - 18) 
 
To confirm the exempt minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet Member – 
Strategic Leadership, Culture and Tourism held on 23 January 2020. 
 

8.   To consider the report of the Executive Director of Commissioning, 
Communities and Policy on Approval to Procure "A New Model of Local 
Government collaboration for Derbyshire - Phase 2 Non-Structural Reform" 
From a Non-DCC Framework (copy to follow)  
 

 



 

1 

 

PUBLIC                                                          
      
 
MINUTES of a meeting of the CABINET MEMBER FOR STRATEGIC 
LEADERSHIP, CULTURE AND TOURISM held on 23 January 2020 at 
County Hall, Matlock 
 

PRESENT 
 

Cabinet Member – Councillor B Lewis 
 
Also in attendance – Councillor R Flatley 
 
1/20  MINUTES RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 6 
December 2019 be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Cabinet 
Member. 
 
2/20  CHANGES TO LIBRARY OPENING HOURS At its meeting on 
20 December 2018, Cabinet gave approval to implement the Derbyshire 
Public Library Service Strategy. Included in the strategy were proposals to 
transfer 20 libraries, and the mobile library service, to community 
management. 

 
While the process for transferring 20 libraries to a community managed 

model was progressing in nine locations, in eleven locations no formal 
expressions of interest had been received to date. In approving the Strategy 
Cabinet agreed that where there were no initial expressions of interest from 
communities, by October 1 2019, the opening hours in those libraries would 
be standardised at 18 hours per week. This proposal would be subject to a 
further period of public consultation. A period of public consultation about 
proposed changes to opening hours at the following libraries, all of which were 
open more than 18 hours per week, was undertaken: 

 
1. Brimington 
2. Clowne 
3. Creswell 
4. Duffield 
5. Gamesley 
6. Killamarsh 
7. Somercotes 
 

The consultation sought to obtain responses on two proposed options to 
change opening hours, together with any other alternative suggestions that 
consultees wished to make. A total of 144 responses had been received to the 
consultation, while the proposed reductions to opening hours elicited positive 
comments about the value of the library service, unsurprisingly a number of 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 

 2 

respondents were opposed to the proposed changes. However, there were no 
alternative proposals put forward for the majority of locations and no 
alternative suggestions about how savings could be made from the library 
service budget.  

 
At Brimington Library a number of respondents commented that there 

was a story time on Thursday morning which was very well attended and also 
that they did not want the library closed for two consecutive days. In light of 
these comments, the proposal for Brimington had been amended so that the 
library would be open on both Tuesday and Thursday mornings, to 
accommodate the children’s story time, and to avoid closure for two 
consecutive days. 

 
Details of existing opening hours and the proposed changes were 

attached at Appendix 1 to the report. When implementing the changes to 
opening hours, staffing levels in libraries would be changed and aligned with 
the proposed levels of service. Library opening hours would change with effect 
from 6 April 2020. 

 
The following libraries were currently open for less than 18 hours per 

week and although no changes were proposed to their opening hours staffing 
levels had been reviewed so that they more accurately reflected levels of 
usage. 

 
1. Hadfield 
2. Holmewood 
3. Whitwell 
4. Pinxton 

 
RESOLVED to approve the implementation of the proposed changes to 

library opening hours, as outlined in appendix one of the report, and the 
associated staffing levels. 
 
3/20  AWARD OF GRANTS TO EXTERNAL RECIPIENTS – VITAL 
VALLEY The County Council, on behalf of the Derwent Valley Mills World 
Heritage Site (DVMWHS) Partnership, had accepted a grant offer from the 
Heritage Lottery Fund (now the National Lottery Heritage Fund – NHLF) for a 
Great Place Scheme in the DVMWHS. 
 
 The Great Place Scheme included the Experiment Fund for heritage, 
arts and cultural organisations within the DVMWHS to experiment with 
projects that could lead to sustainable income generation in the future. The 
Experiment Fund had a total grant of £75,000 from the NLHF and £10,000 
contribution from applicants. 
 

Page 2



 

 3 

 Details of the applications that had been received were provided and 
approval was sought to award grants to the external recipients. 
 
 RESOLVED to (1) approve the award of grants, from the accepted 
National Lottery Heritage Fund grant of £1,285,800 for the ‘Vital Valley’ Great 
Place Scheme to: 
 

 £20,000 to The Arkwright Society Ltd 

 £19,920 to Derby QUAD Ltd 

 £19,800 to Derbyshire County Council Countryside Service 

 £2,138 to Wirksworth Civic Society 

 £490 to Derwent Valley Mills Heritage Site Educational Trust 

 £446 to Friends of the Cromford Canal, 
 

totalling £62,794 from the grant of £75,000 from the National Lottery 
Heritage Fund approved for the Experiment Fund. 

 
 (2) monitor and measure the success of the scheme and its’ returns and 

to report back in 6-12 months. 
 
4/20  BUDGET MONITORING 2019-20 – PERIOD 7 (AS AT 31 
OCTOBER 2019) The net controllable budget for the Strategic Leadership, 
Culture and Tourism portfolio was £12.825m. The Revenue Budget Monitoring 
Statement prepared at period 7 indicated that there was a projected year-end 
underspend of £0.256m. The significant areas which made up this projection 
were highlighted and the key variances were as follows:- 
 
Communications – underspend £0.072m 
The main underspends related to Your Derbyshire, now having 3 copies per 
year instead of 4; and IT Hardware and Software – procurement of new 
contracts using the Derbyshire Framework. 
 
Policy and Research – underspend £0.176m 
The main underspends related to staff vacancy and VCS grant to Bolsover 
CVP (no longer in operation). 
 
Call Derbyshire – underspend £0.134m 
The underspend related to high staff turnover due to employees gaining 
experience and moving on to posts with the Council for promotional purposes. 
 
Tourism and Twinning – underspend £0.057m 
The underspend was due to a vacancy which had not been filled. The full year 
effect would eliminate this underspend in future years. 
 
Heritage – overspend £0.063m 

Page 3



 

 4 

The overspend was due mainly to the Environmental Studies Service which 
had been allocated a budget saving of £0.120m in 2018-19 that had not yet 
been fully achieved. 
 
 Budget reductions totalling £0.760m had been allocated for the year. It 
was forecast that £0.760m of savings will have been achieved by the year-
end. There were £0.120m of savings identified in the previous year for the 
Environmental Studies Service of which £0.034m had been achieved. Details 
of the performance against the target were presented. 
 
 The portfolio had received the following additional budget allocations in 
2019-20: 
 

(i) Thriving Communities £0.368m (on going) 
Funding to concentrate on three priorities in respect of rolling out 
the Council Plan commitment across Derbyshire: radically 
reshaping demand, unlocking community potential and creating 
an alliance for work and skills. This was to replace one off funding 
from reserves and was due to be spent in year. 

 
(ii) Enterprising Council £0.094m (on going) 

Support for this programme of transformational change, which 
would affect the whole organisation and was a Council Plan 
commitment. It was expected that £0.094m would be spent in 
year. 

 
(iii) Community Managed Libraries £0.742 (one off) 

Funding for the Council Plan commitment to introduce community 
managed libraries over the next 5 years. 

 
Earmarked reserves totalling £3.206m were currently held to support 

future expenditure and details of these reserves were presented. 
 
 RESOLVED to note the report. 
 
5/20  EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC RESOLVED to exclude the public 
from the meeting during the consideration of the remaining items on the 
agenda to avoid the disclosure of exempt or confidential information 
 
SUMMARY OF PROCEEDINGS CONDUCTED AFTER THE PUBLIC WERE 
EXCLUDED FROM THE MEETING 
 
 
1. To consider the exempt report of the Executive Director Economy, 

Transport and Environment on a request for additional funding for 
Creswell Heritage Trust (contains information relating to the financial or 

Page 4



 

 5 

business affairs of any particular person (including the Authority holding 
that information)) 

 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Author: Frank Horsley  PUBLIC 
Ext: 38348 

SLCT03 2020.docx 1 
7 February 2020 

 
 

DERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

MEETING OF CABINET MEMBER – STRATEGIC LEADERSHIP, CULTURE 
AND TOURISM 

 
7 February 2020 

 
Report of the Executive Director – Economy, Transport and Environment 

 
FESTIVAL OF DERBYSHIRE – UPDATE AND RESOURCING 

REQUIREMENTS 
 
 
(1) Purpose of Report To report on progress of the Festival of 
Derbyshire and consider resources required to deliver the festival activity as 
agreed at the meeting of the Cultural, Heritage and Tourism (CHAT) Board on 
17 December 2019.  
 
(2) Information and Information 
 
Background 
The visitor economy is acknowledged as one of the key growth sectors within 
Derbyshire, with the sector worth £2.15bn gross value added (GVA) per 
annum in Derbyshire (2017 figures) and growing. 
 
The CHAT Board was established in June 2018, with a primary focus to 
ensure that visitor assets, infrastructure, products and services both 
complement the experience and meet the expectations of Derbyshire’s 
visitors, investors and residents.  
 
In May 2019, members were updated on the progress of the CHAT Board and 
approved recruitment of a full time Senior Economic Development Officer 
post, on a three year fixed term contract, to manage the development of the 
Board and delivery of the CHAT Action Plan.  
 
The new Senior Economic Development Officer (CHAT) was appointed and 
started in late October 2019 and has since been working to move forward the 
Board and Council’s strategic priority, the development and delivery of the 
Festival of Derbyshire.  
 
Through auditing Derbyshire’s rich cultural and heritage offer, pulling out 
strong elements and curating them under key themes/visitor motivations, a 
Festival Framework has been devised which has been used to consult with 
key partners and stakeholders. The response has been positive and, following 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4(a)



Author: Frank Horsley  PUBLIC 
Ext: 38348 

SLCT03 2020.docx 2 
7 February 2020 

sign off from the Project Steering Group, was endorsed by the CHAT Board at 
the meeting held on 17 December 2019.  
 
Overview of the Festival  
The Festival of Derbyshire (FoD) will celebrate Derbyshire’s distinctive culture 
and world class offer and start to tell the Derbyshire Story, based on its 
‘’People, Places and Products’’, marking some key milestones and historically 
relevant anniversaries during the period that help illustrate and bring the story 
to life. 
  
The Festival will be delivered through a high profile campaign, with activities 
commencing in May 2020. The Festival will help present Derbyshire to wider 
national and international audiences, encouraging day visitors to become 
staying visitors, but will also target local audiences, helping local people 
discover and engage with what’s on their doorstep and encouraging them to 
become ambassadors for Derbyshire’s visitor offer.  
 
The Festival will be presented under three seasons, with monthly themes and 
key messaging created within each season.  It is hoped that some of the sub-
brands will remain as a legacy and repeated in future years.   
 
The Festival will highlight the rich offer throughout the festival period (May – 
December 2020) with resourcing concentrated on the shorter season, to 
support wider objectives to extend this season.  
 
Key anniversaries within the festival period will, where possible, be marked or 
signposted . There a number of significant milestones in 2021 that fall out of 
the festival period, but will be incorporated within the narrative to promote a 
sustainable legacy and ensure the Festival can be used as a launch pad for 
celebrations in 2021 and beyond, including the proposed County of Culture 
initiative.  
 
Festival Framework  
 
Health and Well-Being : May-July 2020 

 May: ‘Derbyshire Cares’ (title still under consideration) - Florence 
Nightingale is truly a global figure, with significant reach, so celebrating the 
bicentenary of Florence Nightingale’s birth and her relationship with 
Derbyshire is a great way to launch the festival, highlighting Derbyshire’s 
rich heritage of health and well-being, including spa towns.   

 June: ‘Walk of Art’ – shining a light in the wealth of art within the 
landscape, both historical and contemporary, focussing on trails, walks and 
cycle routes alongside literature in the landscape.   

 July: ‘Sounds of Derbyshire’  will concentrate on Derbyshire’s rich and 
diverse music offer, from world class opera to heavy metal and everything 
in between. 

Page 8



Author: Frank Horsley  PUBLIC 
Ext: 38348 

SLCT03 2020.docx 3 
7 February 2020 

Places : August-September 2020 

 August: ‘Country Fayre’ will focus on local food and drink produce and 
country shows, such as Ashover, Hope and Chatsworth Country Fair.  

 September: ‘ Streets Alive’ concentrates on Derbyshire’s Market Towns 
and will focus on encouraging visitors to Derbyshire’s towns, to shop and 
take part in events at Melbourne, Wirksworth, New Mills , Chesterfield, 
Derby Feste, etc.  

 
Making (with focus on People and Products): October-December 2020  

 October: ‘Derbyshire Treasures/Home Made Delights’ highlighting 
Derbyshire’s museums, artefacts and industrial heritage.  

 November-December:  ‘Made in Derbyshire’ will put the spotlight on 
Derbyshire’s highest quality artisans and makers, in particular those who 
are part of the tourism supply chain, highlighting markets, fairs, open 
studios, and opportunities to ‘make and stay’.  

 
Marketing Campaign  
Marketing Peak District & Derbyshire (MPDD), with steer from the Council’s 
Communication team, is responsible for delivering the marketing and social 
media campaign, and have recently tendered and appointed “The Way 
Design” agency to develop the creative proposals of this work package. It is 
expected that it will present preferred options for the creative campaign, for 
endorsement by the FoD Project Steering Group at its meeting on 29 January 
2020. The campaign and branding toolkit will be worked up in February, ready 
for launch in early March.  

 
Festival Content and Key Activities 
Much of the festival will focus on curating and profiling existing activities. 
Some new activity will also be developed and supported, where there are 
identified gaps in provision or significant opportunity to build audiences or 
product. The following activities are proposed. Further negotiation and 
development work, including partner sign up and external funding, will be 
required to realise them.  
  
Derbyshire Cares (Title to be confimed) - A series of activities to mark 
Florence Nightingale’s bicentenary and celebrate the world-wide community of 
nurses and midwives,  including a launch  event, vouchers and special offers 
to our nurses and potentially mass participation project – ‘a thank you letter’,  
or ‘light-up our world’   

 
The Derbyshire Way – A week long young person’s walking/cycling 
challenge in early/mid-June, to mark the ‘Derbyshire Way’ – a route from 
lowest point (Shardlow) to highest point (Edale) spanning 65 miles, with much 
of the route travelling through the Derwent Valley Mills World Heritage Site, 
and young people/schools encouraged to engage with key sites as they travel 

Page 9



Author: Frank Horsley  PUBLIC 
Ext: 38348 

SLCT03 2020.docx 4 
7 February 2020 

through. Once the route has been established, a challenge will then be set for 
the general public.  
 
Take Part Derbyshire – Volunteers will be a vital component of the festival 
providing much needed stewardship and ownership at a local level. 
Approximately 20 million people in the UK participate in volunteering in some 
way, so a significant audience, as well as a strong community of 
ambassadors.  The festival provides an opportunity to both celebrate and 
support volunteering through the setting up of a sector wide volunteer digital 
platform, setting a challenge to secure 2020 volunteer hours to mark the 
festival, skills building, through County Council Volunteer Passport/European 
Region Development Fund (ERDF) workforce programmes plus a a 
celebration/awards event at the end of the festival.   

 
Made in Derbyshire – “Making” is significant within Derbyshire’s industrial 
and cultural heritage, as well as its contemporary identity, so a really important 
part of the Derbyshire story. The  opening of the Museum of Making to 
coincide with the 300th anniversary of the Silk Mill provides a strong focus to 
launch season 3 and link sites, activities and product promotion, including a 
short 2-3 day Festival of Making, across museum and heritage sites and 
development of quality mark for tourism and culture businesses.  
 
(3) Financial Considerations A budget of £43,500 has been forecast 
(£13,500 for creative proposal, £30,000 for marketing activities) for the entire 
branding, social media marketing campaign. The contracts will be let by 
MPDD and then reimbursed during 2019-20 by the Council. 
 
Following on from this, it is estimated that another £46,500 will be required in 
2020-21 to deliver festival activities, as set out in the report. It is envisaged 
that the budget allocated will be used to support external funding applications 
to deliver specific activity where possible.  
 
The total of the Festival of Derbyshire is set to be £90,000 over the period 
(which spans two financial years) and can be met from the Economic 
Regeneration budget. 
 
(4) Social Value Considerations      The objectives of the CHAT Board is 
to develop Derbyshire’s unique and distinctive cultural and environmental offer 
to promote economic growth and quality of life people who visit, invest, live 
and work in the County. The FoD will contribute direct;y to this objective 
through encouraging visitors to the county whilst developing a sense of pride 
and ownership within Derbyshire’s communities. 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



Author: Frank Horsley  PUBLIC 
Ext: 38348 

SLCT03 2020.docx 5 
7 February 2020 

Other Considerations 
 
In preparing this report the relevance of the following factors has been 
considered: legal, prevention of crime and disorder, equality and diversity, 
human resources, environmental, health, property and transport 
considerations. 
 
(5) Key Decision No. 
 
(6) Call-In Is it required that call-in be waived in respect of the 
decisions proposed in the report?  No. 
 
(7) Background Papers Held on file by the Economic Regeneration 
Service within the Economy, Transport and Environment Department. 
 
(8) OFFICER’S RECOMMENDATIONS     That the Cabinet Member: 
 
8.1 Notes the progress to date of Festival of Derbyshire with further 

progress to be reported on a quarterly basis or when required.  
  
8.2 Approves the estimated budget of £90,000 for delivery of the Festival of 

Derbyshire.  
 
  

 
Mike Ashworth 

Executive Director – Economy, Transport and Environment 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Author: Adam Lathbury  PUBLIC 
Ext: 39791 

SLCT04 2020.docx 1 
7 February 2020 

 

DERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 

 

MEETING OF CABINET MEMBER – STRATEGIC LEADERSHIP, CULTURE 
AND TOURISM 

 
7 February 2020 

 
Report of the Executive Director – Economy, Transport and Environment 

 
WITHDRAWAL OF AWARD OF GRANTS TO EXTERNAL RECIPIENTS 

VITAL VALLEY (HERITAGE LOTTERY FUND GREAT PLACE SCHEME) 
AND THE PROCUREMENT OF COMMISSION 

 
 

(1) Purpose of Report  To update the Cabinet Member on the 
withdrawal of grants to external recipients and inform the Cabinet Member that 
Derbyshire County Council, on behalf of the Derwent Valley Mills World 
Heritage Site (DVMWHS) Partnership, will commission the Options Appraisal 
and Feasibility Study for a visitor attraction as part of Strutt’s North and East 
Mills in Belper. 

  
(2)  Information and Analysis In accordance with Financial 
Regulations, all grants to external recipients must be approved and a 
departmental register maintained. Grants are payments of funds for a specific 
purpose. Examples include contributions towards an external party’s core 
running costs, purchase or construction of specified assets, and the running of 
specific events. 
 
There is now, also, a requirement under the Local Government Transparency 
Code 2014 to publish information on grants awarded to voluntary, community 
and social enterprise organisations. 
 
Derbyshire County Council, on behalf of the DVMWHS Partnership, accepted 
a grant offer from the Heritage Lottery Fund (now - National Lottery Heritage 
Fund (NLHF)) for a Great Place Scheme in the DVMWHS. The Great Place 
Scheme included “Old Spaces, Creative Futures”, a project to facilitate a co-
ordinated approach to the regeneration of the Belper Mills complex, 
particularly the North and East Mills. The project aimed to develop new ideas 
for these significant historical buildings in Belper to benefit businesses and 
residents through a re-development to increase cultural opportunities and 
secure the economic future of the buildings. The NLHF approved these 
activities in the Great Place Scheme. The project commenced in 2018, as part 
of the Great Place Scheme. All Great Place Scheme activities must be 
completed by December 2020 in accordance with the NLHF terms of grant. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 4(b)



Author: Adam Lathbury  PUBLIC 
Ext: 39791 

SLCT04 2020.docx 2 
7 February 2020 

The DVMWHS Partnership Co-ordination Team, through the Great Place 
Scheme, agreed with the NLHF, that an Options Appraisal and Feasibility 
Study is required to review the viability and form of the visitor offer housed on 
the North and East Mills site and that the study should be undertaken in 
consultation with Belper North Mill Trust (BNMT), FI Real Estate Management 
(FI) and Amber Valley Borough Council (AVBC).  BNMT is the operator of the 
accredited museum housed in the North Mill. FI is the property management 
company for the landowner of the North and East Mills site. AVBC is the local 
planning authority for the North and East Mills site.  
 

Through discussion with relevant stakeholders, and specifically NLHF, it has 
become clear that the commissioning organisation needs to demonstrate clear 
lines of responsibility to the production, co-ordination and delivery of 
DVMWHS’s Management Plan, which in this instance is the DVMWHS 
Partnership.  
 
The DVMWHS Partnership is a coalition of stakeholders and includes 
representatives from the relevant statutory and local authorities, BNMT and 
ABVC. The work of the Partnership is supported and facilitated by the 
DVMWHS Partnership Co-ordination Team, hosted by the County Council. 
 
The “Old Spaces, Creative Futures” project has considered various options for 
the commissioning of the Options Appraisal and Feasibility Study between 
members of the DVMWHS Partnership and through discussion, it is 
considered that responsibility for the work is better aligned to the work of the 
Board as a whole, rather than one of the individual partners.  
 
As part of the wider discussion, consideration was also given to options for 
grant funding awards based on the organisational roles of BNMT and AVBC: 
 
1) Belper North Mill Trust 
At the meeting of the Cabinet Member - Strategic Leadership, Culture and 
Tourism on 25 March 2019, it was agreed that a grant up to a maximum of 
£75,000 should be provided to BNMT (Minute No. 07/19 refers). This was to 
commission appropriately experienced and qualified consultants to undertake 
a feasibility and options appraisal report for a World Heritage Site visitor 
facility on the North and East Mill site in Belper. The report needed to identify 
potential funding sources and operational requirements. The award also 
covered further consultancy support to implement actions from the report. 
BNMT has agreed to the withdrawal of the £75,000 grant to facilitate the 
commission by the DVMWHS Partnership, although the Trust will continue to 
be an active participant in delivery of the work as the operator of the 
accredited museum housed in the North Mill. 
 
 
 

Page 14



Author: Adam Lathbury  PUBLIC 
Ext: 39791 

SLCT04 2020.docx 3 
7 February 2020 

2) Amber Valley Borough Council 
A grant was awarded under delegated powers, by the Executive Director – 
Economy, Transport and Environment, in a report dated 19 August 2019 to 
Amber Valley Borough Council (AVBC) to a maximum of £40,000 for 
Feasibility and Options Appraisal report for visitor attraction and development 
of Strutt’s North Mill Museum, Belper, as a visitor attraction for the DVMWHS. 
This option was to replace BNMT as the lead body to commission the Options 
Appraisal and Feasibility Study.  BNMT was informed of the change. Changes 
in the County Council’s Constitution (27 May 2019) provided Executive 
Directors greater powers to take decisions that previously would have been 
taken at either Cabinet or a Cabinet Member meetings.  Through active 
discussion, it has been agreed that AVBC is not best placed to lead on the 
commissioning of the work but instead will be an active participant in the work 
to ensure economic and cultural opportunities are explored fully. 
 
Derbyshire County Council will now commission the Options Appraisal and 
Feasibility Study on behalf of the DVMWHS Partnership (using Protocol 7(B) 
of the County Council’s Financial Regulations). The DVMWHS Partnership 
Co-ordination Team, which is hosted by Derbyshire County Council, will lead 
on procurement and management of the delivery of the commission through 
the Great Place Scheme. The NLHF supports this approach to ensure that the 
grant for the Great Place Scheme facilitates a suitable future for a key 
heritage asset in the centre of the DVMWHS. The DVMWHS Partnership 
would be provided with a study of the potential visitor offer in the Belper North 
and East Mill. The report will help the DVMWHS Partnership identify potential 
funding sources and operational requirements to develop long-term 
investment options. The DVMWHS Partnership will continue to work with 
BNMT, AVBC and FI to guide further consultancy support to implement 
actions from the report. 
 
(3)  Financial Considerations  Derbyshire County Council accepted the 
NLHF grant offer of £1,285,800 on 9 June 2017. On 13 September 2016, the 
Cabinet Member - Highways, Transport and Infrastructure approved the use of 
up to a maximum of £150,000 of the DVMWHS Partnership’s reserve, as 
match funding towards the scheme. The Great Place Scheme is claimed 
retrospectively on incurred costs. No payments have yet been incurred or 
claimed for this project. The grant funding is available until 31 December 
2020. Grants can be met from the Vital Valley budget of £95,000 for the “Old 
Spaces, Creative Futures” budget. The commission will have a maximum 
value of £40,000 and will be procured using Protocol 7B of the Council’s 
Financial Regulations. 
 
(4)  Social Value Considerations The Great Place Scheme supports the 
corporate purpose, vision and values of Derbyshire County Council as laid out 
in the Council Plan Update 2016-17 (page 3) and those of the DVMWHS as 
laid out in its Management Plan 2014-2019, (page 7 and pages 90-104). 

Page 15



Author: Adam Lathbury  PUBLIC 
Ext: 39791 

SLCT04 2020.docx 4 
7 February 2020 

Other Considerations 
 
In preparing this report the relevance of the following factors has been 
considered: legal, prevention of crime and disorder, equality and diversity, 
human resources, environmental, health, property, and transport 
considerations. 
 
(5)  Key Decision  No.  
 
(6)  Call-In  Is it required that call-in be waived in respect of the 
decisions proposed in the report? No.  
 
(7)  Background Papers  Held on file within the Economy, Transport 
and Environment Department. Officer contact details - Adam Lathbury, 
extension 39791. 
 
(8)  OFFICER’S RECOMMENDATIONS       That the Cabinet Member: 
 
8.1 Withdraws a grant up to a maximum of £40,000 to Amber Valley 

Borough Council. 
 
8.2 Withdraws a grant up to a maximum of £75,000 to Belper North Mill 

Trust. 
 

8.3 Notes that Derbyshire County Council, on behalf of the Derwent Valley 
Mills World Heritage Site Partnership, will commission and manage 
delivery of the Options Appraisal and Feasibility Study report for visitor 
attraction in Strutt’s North and East Mills, Belper. This project forms part 
of the Derwent Valley Mills World Heritage Site Great Place Scheme for 
which Derbyshire County Council accepted the National Lottery 
Heritage Fund Grant of £1,285,800. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Mike Ashworth 
Executive Director – Economy, Transport and Environment 

Page 16



Document is Restricted

Page 17

Agenda Item 7
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4(a) Festival of Derbyshire - Update and Resourcing Requirements
	4(b) Withdrawal of Award of Grants to External Recipients Vital Valley (Heritage Lottery Fund Great Place Scheme) and the Procurement of Commission
	7 Minutes

